Bylaws & Policies

Northwest Allen County Schools

7000 Policies – Property

Bylaws & Policies

Adoption Resolution

Resolved, that the bylaws and policies printed and codified in the comprehensive document entitled "Bylaws & Policies of the Northwest Allen County School Corporation School Board" are hereby adopted and that all bylaws and policies heretofore adopted by the Northwest Allen County School Corporation School Board are hereby rescinded, further be it

Resolved, that in the event any policy, part of a policy, or section of the bylaws is judged to be inconsistent with law, inoperative by a court of competent jurisdiction, or is invalidated by a policy or contract duly adopted by this School Board the remaining bylaws, policies, and parts of policies shall remain in full effect.

Take notice that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Northwest Allen County School Corporation School Board at a public meeting held at Fort Wayne, Indiana on May 3, 1993.

Bylaws & Policies

Table of Contents

7000 - PROPERTY

7100	Facilities Planning
7101	Notice of Procurement of Professional Services
7 217	Weapons
7 230	Gifts, Grants, and Bequests
7240	Site Acquisition
7300	Disposition of Real Property
7310	Disposition of Surplus Property
7410	Maintenance
7420	Hygienic Management
7430	Safety Standards
7434	Use of Tobacco on School Premises
7440	Facility Security
7440.01	Video Surveillance and Electronic Monitoring
7450	Property Inventory
7455	Accounting System – Fixed Assets
7460	Conservation of Natural and Material Resources
7510	Use of School Facilities
7540	Computer Technology and Networks
7540.02	Corporation Web Page

Bylaws & Policies

7100 FACILITIES PLANNING

The School Board recognizes that careful, prudent planning is essential to the efficient operation of the schools and that planning must be grounded on accurate data. In order to assure that future Corporation construction supports the educational program and responds to community needs, the Board will prepare a capital construction plan and will revise that plan periodically thereafter. The plan shall include a thorough description and analysis of local and regional demographic factors which influence general population growth and public school enrollments.

In order to apprise the Board of the continuing relevance of the Board's capital construction plan, the Superintendent shall:

- A. report to the Board annually on the number of resident students attending school;
- B. report to the Board on the enrollment by grades during the school year annually;
- C. conduct a "kindergarten roundup" each spring of the number of students who will be enrolled in the schools of the Corporation in September of the year in which the estimate is made and report the results to the Board;
- D. prepare student enrollment projections every year.

Information reported shall include the grade, number of students in each school attendance area in the Corporation.

In planning for the enlargement or modification of its facilities, the Board shall consider not only the number of children whose educational needs must be met, but also the physical requirements of the program it deems best suited to meet those needs. Each school building and site shall provide suitable accommodations to carry out the educational program of the school including provision for the disabled, pursuant to law and regulation.

I.C. 6-1.1-20-10; 511 I.A.C. 21-2-15

Revised 3/6/06; 12/17/2012

Bylaws & Policies

7101 NOTICE OF PROCUREMENT OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

The School Board, pursuant to Indiana law, hereby determines to neither provide nor publish a notice for the requirement of professional services for a project under consideration by the Board involving the construction, remodeling, rehabilitation, or repair of any building or facility owned or leased by the School Corporation.

However, the Board, by a majority vote, may determine to provide or to publish a notice for professional services required for a project. If the Board determines to provide or to publish a notice, the notice shall comply with the requirements of Indiana law.

For purposes of this policy, professional services means those services performed by professional persons, including, but not limited to, a licensed architect, a professional engineer, or a land surveyor.

I.C. 5-16-11.1.2, 5-16-11.1-4

Adopted 5/1/95

Bylaws & Policies

7117 WEAPONS

The School Board prohibits visitors from possessing, storing, making, or using a weapon in any setting that is under the control and supervision of the Corporation for the purpose of school activities approved and authorized by the Corporation including, but not limited to, property leased, owned, or contracted for by the Corporation, a school-sponsored event, or in a Corporation vehicle without the permission of the Superintendent.

The term "weapon" means any object which, in the manner in which it is used, intended to be used, or represented, is capable of inflicting serious bodily harm or property damage, as well as endangering the health and safety of persons. Weapons include, but are not limited to, firearms, guns of any type, including air and gas-powered guns (whether loaded or unloaded), knives, razors, clubs, electric weapons, metallic knuckles, martial arts weapons, ammunition, and explosives. A "knife" is defined as "an instrument that: 1) consists of a sharp edge or sharp pointed blade capable of inflicting cutting, stabbing, or tearing wounds; and 2) is intended to be used as a weapon." I.C. 35-47-5-2.5(a)

The Superintendent will refer a visitor who violates this policy to law enforcement officials and may take any necessary steps to exclude the visitor from Corporation property and Corporation sponsored events.

This prohibition does not apply to weapons under the control of law enforcement personnel.

Exceptions to this policy include:

- A. items approved by a principal as part of a class or individual presentation under adult supervision, if used for the purpose of and in the manner approved; (Working firearms and ammunition shall never be approved.)
- B. theatrical props used in appropriate settings;
- C. starter pistols used in appropriate school related sporting events.

Staff members must report knowledge of dangerous weapons and/or threats of violence by students, staff members, or visitors to the principal. Failure to report such information may subject the staff member to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

I.C. 20-33-9-1; I.C. 35-41-1-8; I.C. 35-47-5-2.5; I.C. 35-47-9; I.C. 35-41-1-4.3

Adopted 9/98

Revised 11/18/02; 5/7/07

Bylaws & Policies

7230 GIFTS, GRANTS, AND BEQUESTS

The School Board is duly appreciative of public interest in and good will toward the schools manifested through gifts, grants, and bequests. The Board reserves the right, however, to specify the manner in which gifts are made; to define the type of gift, grant, or bequest which it considers appropriate; and to reject those which it deems inappropriate or unsuitable. If accepted, the Board will attempt to carry out the wishes of the donor.

All gifts, grants, or bequests greater than \$500 shall be accepted and acknowledged by the Board.

Gifts, grants, and bequests shall become the property of the Board and will be subject to use by the Corporation as determined by the policies and administrative guidelines applying to all properties, equipment, materials, and funds owned by the Board.

Any equipment purchased by an organization for use in the school or at a Corporation-related event shall be submitted to the Board, prior to purchase, so it can determine if the Corporation would incur any liability by its use.

The Board reserves the right to not accept such liability and thus deny the use of the equipment by students or Corporation employees.

I.C. 20-26-7-6 et seq.

Revised 12/17/2012

REPLACED BY: A125 & F275 - SEE BOARD DOCS

Bylaws & Policies

7240 SITE ACQUISITION

It is the policy of the School Board that real property acquisition price be based on a true value with regard for fair remuneration to the seller but not on enhancement of the value of the site to the seller. The presence of a school to service a potential development in itself enhances the profit potential to a developer. It is the Board's sole purpose to provide a service to the residents in a development at the least possible cost to the taxpayers.

The Superintendent shall be responsible for site acquisition negotiations. Negotiations for site acquisition shall be conducted as much as possible within the following guidelines:

- A. Purchase price shall be based on the last transaction price, taxes on the property after platting, and a reasonable interest earning on the investment based on the current cost of money.
- B. Roadways and utility costs to be shared will be calculated on a front footage basis of the proposed site and shall be included only where actual installation has occurred.
- C. The Board shall not share such development costs as engineering, earthmoving, litigation, etc. in determining the fair value of the site to be purchased.

Discussion of possible school sites may be carried on in a closed session of the Board, but all official actions must be taken in an open, public meeting. Official Board action is required to execute a valid contract, and a record of that action must be a part of the minutes of the Board. The process used in acquiring real property must be in accordance with law. Any deviation from the strict requirements of the law may render the transaction void.

I.C. 36-1-10.5-5

Bylaws & Policies

7300 DISPOSITION OF REAL PROPERTY

The School Board believes that the efficient administration of the Corporation requires the disposition of property and goods no longer necessary for the maintenance of the educational program or the operation of the School Corporation.

The Board shall direct the periodic review of all Corporation property and authorize the disposition by sale, donation, trade, or discard of any property not required for school purposes.

All written offers on real property under consideration for disposition shall be presented as an item on the agenda of a public School Board meeting. A preliminary review of offers to purchase or lease shall include: source of offer, date of offer, expiration date of offer, and intended use of property.

All property considered for disposition (sale) shall be subjected to two (2) current, outside, professional appraisals prior to the solicitation of offers.

The authorized agents of the Board to review all purchase or lease offers pertaining to sale or lease of property shall be the Superintendent and the Board Finance Committee. The Board shall give final approval of all contracts.

In consideration of the best interest of the Corporation and of the residents and taxpayers, the Board reserves the right to reject any and all offers at its sole discretion, regardless of price and terms.

The Board prefers permanent disposition of the surplus property at a fair market value.

Potential purchasers or lessees shall demonstrate financial capability to meet the terms and conditions of their purchase or lease offer.

Potential purchasers shall demonstrate reasonable likelihood of obtaining necessary city/township approvals and/or compliance with city/township zoning ordinances.

I.C. 20-26-5-4

Bylaws & Policies

7310 DISPOSITION OF SURPLUS PROPERTY

The Board of Education requires the Superintendent to review the property of the Corporation periodically and to dispose of that material and equipment which is no longer usable in accordance with the terms of this policy.

A. Instructional Material

The Corporation shall review instructional materials (i.e. textbooks, library books, manuals, support materials, etc.) periodically to determine the relevance of such materials to the present world and current instructional programs. The following criteria will be used to review instructional materials for redistribution and possible disposal:

- 1. concepts or content that do not support the current goals of the curriculum
- 2. information that may not be current
- 3. worn beyond salvage

B. **Equipment**

The Corporation shall inspect the equipment used in the instructional program periodically, to determine the condition and usability of such equipment in the current educational program. Should the equipment be deemed no longer serviceable or usable, the following criteria will be used to determine possible disposal:

- 1. repair parts for the equipment no longer readily available
- 2. repair records indicate equipment has no usable life remaining
- 3. obsolete and no longer contributing to the educational program
- 4. some potential for sale at a school auction
- 5. creates a safety or environmental hazard

C. Textbooks

The Corporation shall dispose of textbooks in accordance with the procedures described by statute.

Before the Corporation mutilates or otherwise destroys a textbook, it shall provide at no cost and subject to availability one (1) copy of each textbook that is no longer scheduled for use in the School Corporation to:

- the parent of each child who is enrolled in a corporation school and who wishes to receive a copy of the textbook; and
- 2. if any textbooks remain after such distribution to parents, to any resident who wishes to receive a copy.

If any textbooks remain after such distribution, each school shall store the remainder for at least three (3) months, before disposing of them. A school may sell any of the undistributed texts to another school corporation at any time during the period of storage.

D. Disposition

The Superintendent is authorized to dispose of obsolete instructional and other property by selling it to the highest bidder, by donation to appropriate parties, or by proper waste disposal. Disposal of surplus property purchased with Federal funds shall be disposed of in accordance with Federal guidelines.

I.C. 20-26-5-4, 20-26-12.1 et seg., 36-1-11-6

Revised 9/2/97

Bylaws & Policies

7410 MAINTENANCE

The School Board recognizes that the fixed assets of this Corporation represent a significant investment of this community and their maintenance is of prime concern to the Board.

The Board directs the conduct of a continuous program of inspection, maintenance, and rehabilitation for the preservation of all school buildings and equipment. Wherever possible and feasible, maintenance shall be preventive.

The Superintendent shall develop, for implementation by the custodial and maintenance staff, a maintenance program which shall include:

- A. a regular summer program of facilities repair and conditioning;
- B. the maintenance of a critical spare parts inventory;
- C. an equipment replacement program;
- D. a long-range program of building modernization;
- E. repair or replacement of equipment or facilities for energy conservation, safety, or other environmental factors.

The Superintendent shall develop and promulgate to the custodial and maintenance staff such guidelines as may be necessary for the ongoing maintenance and good order of the physical plant and for the expeditious repair of those conditions which threaten the safety of the occupants or the integrity of the plant.

Said guidelines shall include the establishment of sound priorities among the requests for repairs received from the building principals.

I.C. 20-26-5-4

Bylaws & Policies

7420 HYGIENIC MANAGEMENT

The School Board recognizes that the health and physical well-being of the students of this Corporation depends in large measure upon the cleanliness and sanitary management of the schools.

The Board directs that a program of hygienic management be instituted in the schools and explained annually to all staff members.

The Superintendent shall cooperate with the State Board of Health to inspect each school for cleanliness and sanitation each year.

The Superintendent shall prepare, in consultation with health authorities, procedures for the handling and disposal of body wastes and fluids. Such procedures shall include the protection of staff members who clean or handle blood or blood-soaked items, vomitus, saliva, urine, or feces; the disinfection of surfaces and items in contact with such matter; the disposal of such matter in sealed containers; and the frequent and thorough cleansing of hands and any other body parts that contact such matter. In addition, the Superintendent shall implement annual staff training programs on universal precautions and other infection control measures adopted by the Indiana State Board of Health.

The Superintendent shall develop and supervise a program for the cleanliness and sanitary management of the school buildings, the school grounds, and school equipment pursuant to law.

The cleanliness of each school building and grounds shall be the responsibility of the principal.

I.C. 16-41-11-1 et seq.; I.C. 20-26-5-4; 410 IAC 1-4

Bylaws & Policies

7430 SAFETY STANDARDS

The School Board believes that the employees and students of this Corporation, as well as visitors, are entitled to function in an environment as free from hazards as can reasonably be provided. In this regard and in accordance with law, the Board will provide reasonable and adequate protection to the lives, safety, and health of its employees.

In accordance with State law, the Board will designate safe areas and comply with disaster protection guidelines. The Superintendent shall be responsible for the maintenance of standards in the facilities to prevent accidents and to minimize their consequences. S/He shall designate an employee who shall conduct periodic audits of health and safety conditions within the facilities of the Corporation in accordance with the Federal OSHA standards adopted by the State, and take appropriate action on any violations thereof to the Superintendent. Said employee shall also have the authority to organize and direct the activities of a Corporation safety committee.

The Superintendent shall ascertain that the employees and students of this Corporation are aware of their rights to a hazard-free environment, that they are properly trained in safety methods, that protective devices and equipment are available to meet safety standards, and that proper guidelines and records are maintained to meet the requirements of the law.

I.C. 5-2-10.1-9; I.C. 20-34-3-19; 511 IAC 2-4-1

Bylaws & Policies

7434 USE OF TOBACCO ON SCHOOL PREMISES

The School Board believes that the right of persons to use tobacco must be balanced against the right of those who do not use tobacco to breathe air untainted by tobacco.

In order to protect students and employees who choose not to use tobacco from an environment noxious to them and potentially damaging to their health, the Board prohibits the use of tobacco on school premises, vehicles, and at all school-related events.

For purposes of this policy, "use of tobacco" means a cigar, cigarette, or pipe, or any other matter or substance that contains tobacco.

I.C. 16-41-37; 20 U.S.C. 6081 et seq.; U.S.D.O.E. Memorandum, 1995

Revised 12/17/2012

Bylaws & Policies

7440 FACILITY SECURITY

Buildings constitute the greatest financial investment of the Corporation. It is in the best interest of the School Board to protect the Corporation's investment adequately. The buildings and equipment owned by the Board shall be protected from theft and vandalism in order to maintain the optimum conditions for carrying out the educational programs.

The Superintendent shall develop and supervise a program for the security of the Corporation's students, staff, visitors, school buildings, school grounds, and school equipment in compliance with State and Federal law. Such a program may include the use of video surveillance and electronic monitoring equipment in appropriate public areas in and around the schools and other Corporation facilities, and on school buses.

Every effort shall be made to apprehend those who knowingly cause serious physical harm to students, staff, visitors, and Board property and to require prosecution of those who bring harm to persons and property. The Board will seek repair to rectify the damage or payment of a fee to cover the cost of repair or replacement from the person(s) responsible. A reward may be offered for apprehending such persons.

Appropriate authorities may be contacted in the case of serious offenses.

The Superintendent is authorized to install metal detectors and video surveillance/electronic monitoring equipment on school property in order to protect the health, welfare, and safety of students, staff, visitors and Board property, and other security devices that would assist in the detection of guns and dangerous weapons at Board-sponsored/controlled events.

I.C. 20-33-8-1 et seq.

Revised 9/98; 9/1/09; 7/6/10; 11/14/11

Bylaws & Policies

7440.01 VIDEO SURVEILLANCE AND ELECTRONIC MONITORING

In order to protect Board property, promote security and protect the health, welfare and safety of students, staff and visitors, the School Board authorizes the use of video surveillance and electronic monitoring equipment on school property, and in school buildings and school buses. Information obtained through video surveillance/electronic monitoring may be used to identify intruders and persons breaking the law, Board policy, or the Student Code of Conduct (i.e., it may be used as evidence in disciplinary actions and criminal proceedings).

The monitoring of actions and behavior of individuals who come onto school property is a significant factor in maintaining order and discipline and protecting students, staff, visitors, and school and student property. Video surveillance/electronic monitoring systems serve to complement other means being employed in the Corporation to promote and foster a safe and secure teaching and learning environment for students and staff. The Board recognizes that the use of a video surveillance/electronic monitoring system does not replace the need for the ongoing vigilance of the school staff assigned by the building principal to monitor and supervise the school building. Rather, the video surveillance/electronic monitoring system serves as an appropriate and useful tool with which to augment or support the in-person supervision provided by staff. The building principal is responsible for verifying that due diligence is observed in maintaining general campus security.

The Superintendent is responsible for approving where and when to install and operate fixed-location video surveillance/electronic monitoring equipment in the Corporation. The building principals and administrators responsible for other facilities shall be responsible for recommending use of video surveillance/electronic monitoring. The determination of where and when to use video surveillance/electronic monitoring equipment will be made in a nondiscriminatory manner. Video surveillance/electronic monitoring equipment may be placed in common areas in school buildings (e.g., school hallways, entryways, the front office where students, employees and visitors are permitted to freely come and go, gymnasiums, cafeterias, libraries), the school parking lots and other outside areas, and in school buses. Except in extraordinary circumstances and with the written authorization of the Superintendent, video surveillance/electronic monitoring equipment shall not be used in areas where persons have a reasonable expectation of privacy (e.g., restrooms, locker rooms, changing areas). The Superintendent shall carefully consider and consult with Corporation legal counsel before authorizing placement in, private offices (unless there is express consent given by the office occupant), or conference/meeting rooms, or in individual classrooms during instructional times. Security staff and administrators are authorized to carry and use portable video cameras when responding to incidents. The Board authorizes security personnel to use body-worn video cameras while on duty, but prohibits them from being operated while the individual is routinely patrolling restrooms and locker rooms, unless the staff member is responding to a specific incident.

Any person who takes action to block, move, or alter the location and/or viewing angle of a video camera shall be subject to disciplinary action.

Legible and visible signs shall be placed at the main entrance to buildings and in the areas where video surveillance/electronic monitoring equipment is in use. Signs shall be reasonably designed to notify people that their actions/behavior are being monitored/recorded. Additionally, the Superintendent is directed to annually notify parents and students via school newsletters and the Student Handbook, and staff via the Staff Handbook, of the use of video surveillance/electronic monitoring systems in their schools.

Any information obtained from video surveillance/electronic monitoring systems may only be used to support the orderly operation of the School Corporation's schools and facilities, and for law enforcement purposes, and not for any other purposes. As such, recordings obtained through the use of video surveillance/electronic monitoring equipment may be used as evidence in any disciplinary proceedings, administrative proceeding or criminal proceeding, subject to Board policy and regulations. Further, such recordings may become a part of a student's education record or staff member's personnel file.

Ordinarily video surveillance/electronic monitoring equipment will not be used to make an audio recording of conversation occurring on school grounds or property.

The Board will not use video surveillance/electronic monitoring equipment to obtain information for the purpose of routine staff appraisal/evaluation or monitoring.

Bylaws & Policies

Recordings of students will be treated as confidential, to the extent allowed by law. Copies of video recordings containing personally identifiable information about students shall not be released except as required or authorized by law. Parents or guardians of minor students, and students who are eighteen (18) years of age or older, who are charged with disciplinary violations may view relevant portions of any video recording related to the charge, upon written request to the building principal, provided that viewing the recording does not violate State and/or Federal law (i.e., the privacy rights of any other students whose images appear on the recording). Likewise, school personnel may view relevant portions of any video relating to any disciplinary charge against them, upon written request to the building principal, provided that viewing the recording does not violate State and/or Federal law (i.e., the privacy rights of any students whose images appear on the recording). Absent a clear legal obligation, confidential recordings will only be released through subpoena or court order.

The Board shall maintain video surveillance/electronic monitoring recordings for a limited period. Any request to view a recording under this policy must be made within seven (7) days of the event/incident. Unless an investigation is being conducted, recordings shall be destroyed after seven (7) days. If, however, action is taken by the Board/administration, as a result of a formal complaint or incident, recordings shall be kept for a minimum of one (1) year from the date of the action taken.

This policy does not address or cover instances where school officials record a specific event (e.g., a play, music performance, athletic contest, graduation, or Board meeting), or an isolated instance where a classroom is videotaped for educational or research purposes. Authorized videotaping for educational, instructional and/or research purposes is permitted and is not addressed by this policy.

The Superintendent is directed to develop administrative guidelines to address the use of video surveillance/electronic monitoring equipment in school buildings, school buses and on property owned and/or operated by the Board.

Video surveillance is to be implemented in accordance with this policy and the related guidelines. The Board will not accept or tolerate the improper use of video surveillance/electronic monitoring equipment and will take appropriate action in any cases of wrongful use of this policy.

FERPA, 20 U.S.C. 1232g 34 C.F.R. 99.1-99.67 Title I of the Electronic Communication Privacy Act of 1986 18 U.S.C. 2510-2521

Adopted 11/14/11

Bylaws & Policies

7450 PROPERTY INVENTORY

As steward of this Corporation's property, the School Board recognizes that efficient management and full replacement upon loss requires accurate inventory and properly maintained property records.

The Board shall conduct a complete inventory and maintain a continuous inventory of all Corporation-owned equipment annually.

For purposes of this policy, "equipment" shall mean a unit of furniture or furnishings, an instrument, a machine, an apparatus, or a set of articles which retains its shape and appearance with use, is nonexpendable, costs at least \$100.00 to replace as a single unit and does not lose its identity when incorporated into a more complex unit.

It shall be the duty of the business manager to ensure that inventories are recorded systematically and accurately and property records of equipment are updated and adjusted annually by reference to purchase orders and withdrawal reports.

Each building principal/supervisor shall conduct an annual spot-check inventory of major items of equipment to determine loss, mislocation, or depreciation; any major loss shall be reported to the Board.

The business manager shall maintain a system of property records which shall show, as appropriate to the item recorded, year of purchase, initial cost, and location.

Bylaws & Policies

7455 ACCOUNTING SYSTEM - FIXED ASSETS

The School Board shall maintain a fixed asset accounting system. The fixed asset system shall maintain sufficient information to permit the following:

- A. the preparation of year-end financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
- B. adequate insurance coverage
- C. control, and accountability

Fixed assets are defined as those tangible assets of the Corporation with a useful life in excess of one (1) year and an initial cost equal to or exceeding the amount determined periodically in the Corporation's administrative guidelines. Some items may be identified as "controlled" assets that, although they do not meet all fixed asset criteria, are to be recorded on the fixed asset system to maintain control.

Fixed assets shall be classified as follows:

- A. land
- B. building
- C. machinery and equipment
- D. vehicles

Leased fixed assets and assets which are jointly owned shall be identified and recorded on the fixed asset system.

Fixed assets shall be recorded at actual, or if not determinable, estimated purchase price or fair market value at the time of acquisition. The method(s) to be used to estimate such price or market value historical cost shall be established by the Superintendent.

The Superintendent shall develop administrative guidelines to ensure proper purchase, transfer, and disposal of fixed assets.

Depreciation shall be recorded for funded fixed assets using the method(s) agreed upon by the Superintendent and the Treasurer.

The following information shall be maintained for all fixed assets:

- A. description
- B. asset classification (land, building, equipment, etc.)
- C. location
- D. purchase price
- E. vendor

Revised 6/19/06

Bylaws & Policies

7460 CONSERVATION OF NATURAL AND MATERIAL RESOURCES

The increasing costs of natural energy resources coupled with the growing need to inhibit pollution mandate the Corporation implement strategies which will conserve all forms of energy used.

The School Board directs the Superintendent to develop and implement both immediate and long range plans to meet these concerns. It expects that the administrative guidelines and procedures established will be properly observed by all members of the staff and strongly supported both in the educational program and in staff interactions with students.

I.C. 36-1-12.5; 511 IAC 2-1-1(c)

Bylaws & Policies

7510 USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES

The School Board believes that the school facilities of this Corporation should be made available for community purposes, provided that such does not infringe on the original and necessary purpose of the property or interfere with the educational program of the schools and is harmonious with the purposes of this Corporation.

The Board will permit the use of school facilities when such permission has been requested in writing by a responsible organization or a group of citizens and has been approved by the Superintendent.

Corporation facilities may be available for the below-listed uses. When there are competing interests for such uses, approval will be given according to the following priorities:

- A. uses directly related to the schools and the operations of the schools
- B. uses and groups indirectly related to the schools
- C. meetings of employee associations
- D. uses for voter registration and elections
- E. departments or agencies of the municipal government
- F. other governmental agencies
- G. community organizations or groups of individuals formed for:
 - 1. charitable:
 - 2. civic;
 - 3. social;
 - 4. educational;
 - 5. political;
 - 6. religious;
 - 7. recreational purposes;
- H. commercial or profit-making organizations or individuals offering services for profit.

The use of school facilities shall not be granted for private social functions or any purpose which is prohibited by law.

Should all or any part of the Corporation's community be struck by a disaster, the Board shall make Corporation grounds and/or facilities available, at no charge, for the housing, feeding, and care of victims or potential victims when requested by local, State, or Federal authorities. The Superintendent should meet with the Allen County Emergency Preparedness Office to establish a disaster preparedness plan in order to ensure that proper procedures are established to minimize confusion, inefficiency, and disruption of the education program.

The Superintendent shall develop administrative guidelines for the granting of permission to use Corporation facilities including a schedule of fees. Such guidelines are to include the following:

Each user may be required to present evidence of the purchase of organizational liability insurance to the limit prescribed by the Board.

Users shall be liable financially for damage to the facilities and for proper chaperonage.

No liability shall attach to this Corporation, any employee, school Board member, officer, or member of this Corporation specifically as a consequence of permitting access to these facilities.

Bylaws & Policies

I.C. 20-26-5-1, 20-26-5-4, 20-26-8-1 511 IAC 6-2-1(b)(5)

Revised 11/21/95

Bylaws & Policies

7540 COMPUTER TECHNOLOGY AND NETWORKS

Freedom of expression is an inalienable human right and the foundation for self-government. Freedom of expression encompasses the right to freedom of speech and the corollary right to receive information. Such rights extend to minors as well as adults. Schools facilitate the exercise of these rights by providing access to information regardless of format or technology. In a free and democratic society, access to information is a fundamental right of citizenship.

In making decisions regarding student access to the Internet, the Northwest Allen County School Corporation considers its own stated educational mission, goals, and objectives. Electronic information research skills are now fundamental to preparation of citizens and future employees. Access to the Internet enables students to explore thousands of libraries, databases, bulletin boards, and other resources while exchanging messages with people around the world. The Corporation expects that faculty will blend thoughtful use of the Internet throughout the curriculum and will provide guidance and instruction to students in its use. As much as possible, access from school to Internet resources should be structured in ways which point students to those which have been evaluated prior to use. While students will be able to move beyond those resources to others that have not been previewed by staff, they shall be provided with guidelines and lists of resources particularly suited to learning objectives.

Outside of school, families bear responsibility for the same guidance of Internet use as they exercise with information sources such as television, telephones, radio, movies, and other possibly offensive media.

Students utilizing Corporation-provided Internet access must first have the permission of and must be supervised by the Corporation's professional staff. Students utilizing school-provided Internet access are responsible for good behavior online just as they are in a classroom or other area of the school. The same general rules for behavior and communications apply.

The purpose of Corporation-provided Internet access is to facilitate communications in support of research and education. To remain eligible as users, students' use must be in support of and consistent with the educational objectives of the School Corporation. Access is a privilege, not a right. Access entails responsibility.

Users should not expect that files stored on school-based computers will always be private. Electronic messages and files stored on school-based computers may be treated like school lockers. Administrators and faculty may review files and messages to maintain system integrity and insure that users are acting responsibly.

The following uses of school-provided access are not permitted:

- A. to access, upload, download, or distribute pornographic, obscene, or sexually explicit material
- B. to transmit obscene, abusive, or sexually explicit language
- C. to violate any local, State, or Federal statute
- D. to vandalize, damage, or disabled the property of another individual or organization
- E. to access another individual's materials, information, or files without permission
- F. to violate copyright or otherwise use the intellectual property of another individual or organization without permission

Any violation of Corporation policy and rules may result in loss of Corporation-provided access to the Internet. Additional disciplinary action may be determined at the building level in keeping with existing procedures and practices regarding inappropriate language or behavior. When and where applicable, law enforcement agencies may be involved.

The School Corporation makes no warranties of any kind, neither expressed nor implied, for the Internet access it is providing. The Corporation will not be responsible for any damages users suffer, including-but not limited to--loss of data resulting from delays or interruptions in service. The Corporation will not be responsible for the accuracy, nature, or quality of information stored on Corporation diskettes, hard drives, or servers; nor for the accuracy, nature, or quality of information gathered through Corporation-provided Internet access. The Corporation will not be responsible for personal property used to access Corporation computers or networks or for Corporation-provided Internet access. The Corporation will not be responsible for unauthorized financial obligations resulting from Corporation-provided access to the Internet.

Bylaws & Policies

Parents of students in the Northwest Allen County School Corporation shall be provided with the following information:

The Northwest Allen County School Corporation is pleased to offer its students with access to the Internet. The Internet is an electronic highway connecting hundreds of thousands of computers and millions of individual users all over the world. This computer technology will help propel our schools through the communication age by allowing students and staff to access and use resources from distant Corporation computers, communicate and collaborate with other individuals and groups around the world, and significantly expand their available information base. The Internet is a tool for life-long learning.

Families should be aware that some materials accessible via the Internet may contain items that are illegal, defamatory, inaccurate, or potentially offensive to some people. In addition, it is possible to purchase certain goods and services via the Internet which could result in unwanted financial obligations for which a student's parent or guardian would be liable.

While the Corporation's intent is to make Internet access available in order to further educational goals and objectives, students may find ways to access other materials as well. Even should the Corporation institute technical methods or systems to regulate students' Internet access, those methods could not guarantee compliance with the Corporation's acceptable use policy. That notwithstanding, the Corporation believes that the benefits to students of access to the Internet exceed any disadvantages. Ultimately, however, parents and guardians of minors are responsible for setting and conveying the standards that their children should follow when using media and information sources. Toward that end, the Northwest Allen County School Corporation makes the Corporation's complete Internet policy and procedures available on request for review by all parents, guardians, and other members of the community; and provides parents and guardians the option of requesting for their minor children alternative activities not requiring Internet use.

Adopted 5/1/95

Revised 1/96

REPLACED BY: A300 - SEE BOARD DOCS

Bylaws & Policies

7540.02 CORPORATION WEB PAGE

The School Board authorizes the creation of web sites by employees and students of the School Corporation to be published on the World Wide Web. The creation of web sites by students must be done under the supervision of a professional staff member. These web sites must reflect the professional image of the Corporation, its employees, and students. The content of all pages must be consistent with the School Corporation's Mission Statement.

The purpose of the web site is to educate, inform, and communicate. The following criteria should be used to guide the development of such web sites:

A. Educate

Content provided in the web site should be usable by students and teachers to support the curriculum and School Corporation Objectives as listed in the Corporation's Strategic Plan.

B. Inform

Content may inform the community about the school, teachers, students, or departments, including information about curriculum, events, class projects, student activities, and departmental policies.

C. Communicate

Content may provide an avenue to communicate with the community.

The information contained on the web site should reflect and support the Corporation's Mission Statement, Educational Philosophy, and the Academic Improvement Process.

When the content includes a photograph or information relating to a student, the Corporation will abide by the provisions of Policy 8330 - Student Records.

All links included on the pages must also meet the above criteria.

Under no circumstances is a web site to be used for commercial purposes or to provide financial gains for any individual.

Pages should reflect an understanding that both internal and external audiences will be viewing the information.

School web sites must be located on Corporation affiliated servers.

The Superintendent shall prepare administrative guidelines defining the standards permissible for web-site use.

Adopted 4/00

REPLACED BY: A300 - SEE BOARD DOCS